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Question: Given the amount of new construction currently in progress and other recent projects, it is asked that DESC and the Air Force Base permit a final inventory and price re-submittal immediately prior to contract signing and system transfer to update renewals and replacements projections to true requirements. 

Answer: There is no or very little Utilities construction.

Question: Please provide a copy of the results and subsequent actions of the 1997 pole inspection.

Answer: See PDF file titled “Pole Replacement”.

Question: Please describe the extent of substation equipment maintenance beyond routine testing within the past five years such as: Oil filtration, Contact replacements, Megger tests, Hi-pot tests, and Ratio tests.

Answer: Most of Kirtland’s substation work was performed through the COE on various problems encountered on an as-needed basis. S.D. Myers performed most of the oil filtration prior to the last 5 years. They also do Kirtland’s yearly analysis. See the PDF file titled “Sub-Station Up Grades”. 

Question: Please provide demarcation definitions for the case where overhead transformers provide service to buildings by means of a secondary riser and underground cable.

Answer: All of the specific demarcations listed in the Right-of-Way (RoW) documents apply whether it is underground or overhead. Each individual case could be different, depending on whether it belongs to or is maintained by the Air Force, Hunt Building Company, Honewell, or DOE. 

Question: Please provide outage records for the past three years.

Answer: See Microsoft Access file titled “Electrical Outages”.

** Referencing Clause L.9.6.1 (Schedule for B-2 and B-3 Instructions), the title of the clause refers to Schedule B-3, which is the alternative price proposal applicable to regulated public utilities.  However, the substance of the clause refers to Schedule B-2. 

Question: May we assume that a regulated utility should provide a price proposal that endeavors to describe a tariff rate in a manner that is consistent to the intent, but not the letter, of the B-2 related instructions?  

Answer: Yes, please submit a B-3 Schedule with your price proposal based on the regulated utility tariff rate for your company, in accordance with a B-2 Instructions.  Keep in mind that if you are submitting a regulated bid we want to see your tariff rate.

** Referencing Clause L.9.6.1 (Schedule for B-2 and B-3 Instructions), the title of the clause refers to Schedule B-3, which is the alternative price proposal applicable to regulated public utilities.  However, the substance of the clause refers to Schedule B-2.


Question: Alternatively, it is suggested that the RFP be modified to include the following provisions that were extracted from a recently-amended RFP issued by the Department of the Army:

The offeror shall provide an explanation of each tariff, how each tariff will be applied, the locations to which each tariff applies and the rationale for applying each tariff.  The offerors shall provide information on how the proposed tariff rate(s) will be applied to determine the monthly service charge.  The offeror shall provide any assumptions in determining which rate to apply.  Describe the rate/rates, how and what assumptions the offeror used to determine the annual costs for the different rates.  Offeror shall describe how the offered rates differ from the rate under which the service is currently being provided to the Installation and the economic impact of any proposed change in rate.  As part of the proposal, the offeror shall provide the following, if applicable:

i. Service class

ii. Description of service class

iii. Tariff schedule

iv. Assumptions of service

v. Calculated annual cost

vi. Explanation of the regulatory process, if any, that will apply prior to the imposition of future price changes

vii. Capital renewals and replacements.

Answer: Per request to change submittal to the Army RFP, please reference the Air Force RFP, B.6 - Alternate Price Proposal not the Army RFP.   Please use the Air Force Kirtland RFP when submitting Price Proposals.

** Referencing Section M (Evaluation Factors for Awards), the section does not appear to address the requirement in Section IV.A.2 of the DoD’s October 9, 2002, Revised Guidance for the Utilities Privatization Program (Revised Guidance) to consider “possible long-term costs and benefits to the United States, if the conveyance affects separate contract relationships, particularly for commodities.”  It would seem that this clause is especially relevant in light of the requirement in Clause J1.4 of Attachment J1 that the existing special service arrangements between the Air Force and Public Service Company of New Mexico (PNM) shall be maintained.  

Question: It is suggested that the RFP include the substance of the Revised Guidance be included in the RFP.

Answer: The RFP will not be changed to reflect this request.  Please submit all proposals based on the Kirtland RFP not the Army RFP.

Question: Referencing Attachment J1 (System Description), the page 3, system summary states that there are 2,411 utility poles, yet the Table 1 detailed inventory identifies 2,313 poles.  Which number is correct?

Answer: Table 1 should be used for the number of utility poles.

Questions: Referencing Attachment J1 (System Description), please confirm if the Table 1 inventory data for overhead and underground circuits refers to conductor wire rather than circuit lengths.  To assume otherwise would result in unrealistically long pole spans.  Assuming that wire lengths are provided, may we assume that overhead circuits contain an average of five wires (i.e., for phases, neutral and secondary)?

Answer: Table 1 refers to the conductor wire lengths not circuit length. You may use the assumption that the overhead lines contain an average of five wires.

Question: Referencing Attachment J1 (System Description), please provide the number of distribution (i.e., 12.47 or 4.16 kV) circuits within the system to be privatized.

Answer: There are approximately 54 (12.47/4.16 kV) circuits within the system to be privatized. 

Question: Referencing Attachment J1 (System Description), please provide the voltages for the Table 1 pad-mount switches, especially the 46 kV switches, if any.  This is needed because there is a substantial installed cost differential between 46 kV and 12.47/4.16 kV switches.

Answer: The pad-mounted switches are 12.47/4.16 kV switches.

Question: Referencing Attachment J1 (System Description), the Table 1 inventory identifies a substantial number of 25, 30 and 35-foot wood poles.  Are all listed poles power poles (as opposed to lighting poles)?

Answer: All poles listed are power poles.

Question: Referencing Attachment J1 (System Description), the Table 1 inventory does not identify standalone automatic reclosures (ARs) or switching stations.  Please confirm that the system does not contain these equipment categories.

Answer: Currently there are three.

Question: Referencing Attachment J1 (System Description), does the system contain fused or unfused taps for cutouts for single-phase service?

Answer: Contains both.

Question: Referencing Attachment J1 (System Description), the Table 5 and 6 lists of existing and required new secondary meters identify a number of meters that are to be read quarterly.  The Meter Reading Report in Section J1.6, however, refers to monthly meter reads.  Please reconcile the two requirements.

Answer: Section J1.6 refers to the reporting requirements. Meters shall be read per table 5 and 6.  The intent is to meter as a minimum all of the Wing’s reimbursable customers.

Question: Referencing Attachment J1 (System Description), Section J1.7 raises the possibility that an ESPC contractor might install capacitors on the privatized system at substations or elsewhere.  Standard public utility operating practices, however, do not allow customer or third party owned capacitor attachments to a utility-owned system. If needed, the capacitors instead can be installed by the local utility.  The requirement is modified accordingly.  Please note that a modification would provide consistency with Clause C.3.1, which requires that a regulated utility provide service “consistent with the operation and maintenance of (the utility’s) regulated utility system.”

Answer: This section refers to possible modifications to Air Force owned systems on Kirtland AFB. No third party-owned capacitor will be required to be attached to a utility-owned system.

Question: Referencing Attachment J1 (System Description), item Number 3 in the top paragraph on page 3 states that 46 kV Feeders 1 and 2 are owned by the DOE and will not be part of the privatized system.  The first system deficiency listed in Table 8, however, identifies a project to “upgrade portion of Feeder 2 east of Area III.”  Does the Table 8 project in fact call for an upgrade of a DOE-owned and operated 46 kV feeder?  Please clarify this requirement.

Answer: The contractor will not be responsible for repairs to DOE-owned and operated 46kV feeders.

Question: Referencing Attachment J2 (System Description), please indicate if the system has been operated and maintained in accordance with the Department of Transportation (DOT) pipeline safety requirements at Parts 191 and 192 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)?  If not, please identify the CFR compliance deficiencies.

Answer: When the gas lines were installed in the late 50’s they met Air Force Code. However, they have not been upgraded.

Question: Referencing Attachment J2 (System Description), Section J2.2.1.1 indicates that the system’s PE piping was installed in the 1990s.  Please identify the major contractor(s) responsible for the PE pipe installation.  If such information cannot be provided, please indicated whether or the not the installation was performed by Title 49 certified personnel.

Answer: The lines were installed according to Air Force Standards.

Question: Referencing Attachment J2 (System Description), Section J2.2.1.1 indicates that about 10 percent of the PE piping does not contain tracer wire.  Please explain the lack of tracer wire.  For example, was it omitting from the Government’s bid specifications, or did the contractor fail to include the wire?

Answer: Failure of contractor to supervise the subcontractor. Air Force inspectors recognized it, but contractor did not fix the problem.

Question: Referencing Attachment J2 (System Description), please indicate if (a) the existing system was pressure tested, (b) a maximum allowable operating pressure (MAOP) in accordance with Title 49 was established, and (c) the Air Force can provide appropriate documentation or certification to support (a) and (b) at the time of contract award.

Answer: Kirtland doesn’t know. Records are stored for five years, and then destroyed.

Question: Referencing Attachment J2 (System Description), please characterize the overall condition of the natural gas distribution system.  That is, is it generally in good, moderate, or poor condition?  

Answer: Fair to Poor. The existing PE pipe is in good condition.

Question: Referencing Clause C.13.2 (System O&M During Maintenance), standard utility operating practices and compliance with CRF Title 49 necessitate that the Government be the system operator for the purposes of complying with DOT requirements applicable to “abnormal operating conditions” for as long as the Government retains ownership of all or part of the privatized gas system.  It is suggested that the RFP be clarified as noted.

Answer: The RFP will not be changed to reflect your request. Please submit your proposal based on the RFP.

** Reference: Section C.11.2.1 Renewals and Replacements and C.11.2.2 Initial Capital Upgrades.

Question: Why is the statement: (“(To the extent that the Contractor does not have other utility systems providing similar utility service to at least 50,000 customers, the Government must consent in writing to renewals and replacements that are beyond the requirements and standards imposed by law; the costs of renewals and replacements to meet the standards typically applied by the Contractor to its other utility systems will not be recoverable from the Government unless such consent is granted)”) included in this RFP when it hasn’t been included in prior Utilities Privatization RFPs? 

Answer: This statement was included in the Air Force RFP at the advice of the Edison Electrical Institute (EEI). EEI made the recommendation based on their experience those utilities that have greater than the indicated number of customers will be required by regulatory agencies to make changes.

Question: What happens if a base is affected by BRAC/base closure during the life of the contract?

Answer: Each BRAC/base closure brings with it its own enabling legislation outlining the process and settlement provisions.

Question: Utilities Privatization will effect exactly which areas affected by the Housing Privatization in the Military Family Housing?

Answer: There are three housing areas that the contractor who wins the utility privatization contract will also be required to operate and maintain, all of which are reflected in the RFP by the lines of demarcation. Maxwell Housing on the west side of the base north of Gibson, Maxwell Housing on the west side of the base south of Gibson, and Zia Park Housing.

